
CLEARFIELD CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 
February 1, 2006 

7:00 P.M. - Regular Session 
 

PRESIDING:   Victor Olson   Chairman 
 
PRESENT:   Cornell Griffeth  Commissioner 

Paul Poorte   Commissioner 
Mark Shepherd  Commissioner 
Robert Osborne  Commissioner 
Matt Hartvigsen  Commissioner 
Mark Bottema   Alternate Commissioner 
Doyle Sprague   Council Liaison 

 
EXCUSED:   Ligia Muñoz   Commissioner 

Kent Bush   Planning/Zoning Administrator 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  Larry Waggoner  City Attorney 
Scott Hodge   Director Public Works 
Kay Chandler   City Manager 
Christine Horrocks  Building Permits Specialist 
Gregg Benson   Planning/Zoning GIS Specialist 

 
VISITORS:   Don Wood, Robert Greer, Mark Lamoine, Vern Phipps, Kathryn 

Murray, Jeff Woodall, Austin Shepherd, Darren Carpenter, Kelly 
Nielson 

 
Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chairman Olson. 
 
Chairman Olson welcomed Councilmember Sprague as the new Council Liaison to the Planning 
Commission. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM JANUARY 18, 2006 PLANNING COMMISSION 
MEETING 

 
Commissioner Poorte moved to approve the minutes of January 18, 2006 as written.  
Seconded by Commission Hartvigsen.  All Voting AYE. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A HOME OCCUPATION FOR 
A MOTORCYCLE REPAIR BUSINESS IN THE GARAGE AT 647 EAST 400 SOUTH 
 
Chairman Olson read the Public Hearing notice and declared the Public Hearing open at 7:03 
P.M. 
 
Robert Greer, said the major portion of the business is adding accessories to motorcycles 



Clearfield City Planning Commission Minutes February 1, 2006 Page 2 
 
however, it does involve some engine tear down.  The business will be kept within the garage.  
Mr. Greer said he is looking into selling apparel and motorcycle parts.  His goal is to have a 
storefront at a different location. Chairman Olson asked if it was a full-time business.  Mr. Greer 
said no,  he works swing shift at a steel shop.  His hours of operation would be from 10:00 A.M. 
to 2:00 P.M. weekdays and on the weekend he would shut down at 6:00 P.M. at the latest.    
Chairman Olson commented that the size of the work area is very small.  Mr. Greer said two 
motorcycles maximum will fit inside his garage.  Chairman Olson asked him what accessories he 
would be putting on the motorcycles.  He said he puts on new chrome, seats and handle bars, and 
reroutes wires.  Chairman Olson remarked that there was a discrepancy with the information 
given.   Mr. Greer said he was confused when he filled out the paperwork.  There was a 
misunderstanding about the garage, if it was attached or detached.  Commissioner Poorte asked if 
a different public notice needed to go out.  Gregg Benson said the notice sent to the neighbors 
said it was small engine repair and it was in a detached garage. When the discrepancy was 
discovered, the notice on the property was amended, stating  it was an attached garage and the 
work was motorcycle repair.  Larry Waggoner said the neighbors need to be notified of the 
changes and another date set for the public hearing.  Mr. Greer made the comment that he talked 
to his neighbors and mentioned that it was motorcycle repair. 
 
Commissioner Shepherd moved to table this request until the neighbors are notified.  
Seconded by Commissioner Poorte.  All Voting AYE.    
 
 
SITE PLAN APPROVAL FOR OFFICE/SHOP BUILDINGS AT 47 WEST 1700 SOUTH 
 
Gregg Benson explained this will be office and shop space marketed to contractors, plumbers, 
and shop owners.  The existing carwash and the pole sign will be torn down.  They will have 
signage similar to that at Wilcox Farms Subdivision, a monument plus wall signs on the 
buildings.  The monument sign will not be installed at this time.  Drainage will be retained on site 
by detention basins.  Chairman Olson asked about meeting with UDOT for the new access.  
There will still only be one access from 1700 South, the new access will be to the west of the 
current entrance to the car wash.  Chairman Olson asked if they would be marketing to insurance 
agents and that type of businesses.  Gregg Benson said Keepsake Homes will be the contractor 
and at this point they will have an office space and a place to park their trucks at night, plus space 
for any of their subcontractors.  The square footage and parking limits the type of businesses that 
can occupy the space.  He stated it is almost a C-1 use.  Chairman Osborne asked if Keepsake 
Homes had built in Clearfield City before.  He was told they have built homes.  Commissioner 
Hartvigsen was concerned with the parking, but now he knows what the intended use is, there 
appears to be adequate parking for that.  Chairman Olson asked what they would do with the 
snow?  Gregg Benson said he didn=t know at this time what their plans are.   

 
Commissioner Shepherd moved to approve this request for site plan approval with signage 
for office / shop buildings at 47 West 1700 South with the condition of review and approval 
by UDOT.  Seconded by Commissioner Poorte.  All Voting AYE. 



Clearfield City Planning Commission Minutes February 1, 2006 Page 3 
 
PLANNING COMMISSIONER=S MINUTE 
 
Chairman Olson - Nothing 
 
Commissioner Griffeth - Nothing 
 
Commissioner Poorte - Nothing 
 
Commissioner Shepherd - Nothing 
 
Commissioner Osborne - Nothing 
 
Commissioner Hartvigsen - Nothing 
 
Commissioner Bottema - Nothing 
 
Councilmember Sprague - Nothing 
 
 
There being no further business to come before the Planning Commission, Commissioner 
Osborne moved to adjourn at 7:20 P.M.  Seconded by Commissioner Shepherd.  All Voting 
AYE.  


